
T O W N  O F  B E L G R A D E  

Meeting Agenda 
BOARD OF SELECTPERSONS 

JULY 11, 2023 
6:30 p.m. REGULAR MEETING 

BELGRADE TOWN OFFICE 

 

This meeting will be conducted in person. The public may also view the meeting and participate online 

at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984 

 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Establish quorum. 

Open Meeting 

1. Public Comment 

2. Review and approve minutes of June 20, 2023 

3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Winter Maintenance Bids, review and speak with bidders 
B. Map Digitization, use of Rescue Funds 
C. RFPs/Bids for dry hydrant, tree services, plumbing/heating services, sand and salt mixing 

services, assessing 
 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Appointments, Resignations 
B. Fire Department – appraisal of properties 
C. Tax Commitment, Mil Rate Calculations – Assessor 
D. 4 Day Work Week – Town Office staff 

 
5. OTHER BUSINESS 

6. WARRANTS  

7. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


Memo 

_______________________________ 

Minutes 

 

Review and approve minutes of June 20, 2023. 



Page 1 of 5 
 

T O W N  O F  B E L G R A D E  

Meeting Agenda 
BOARD OF SELECTPERSONS 

JUNE 20, 2023 / 6:30 P.M. 
BELGRADE TOWN OFFICE 

 

The public may view the meeting at https://youtu.be/Tm3xmXd5iOU 

 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance at 6:31 p.m. by Chair Barbara Allen. 

Present: Chair Barbara Allen, Vice Chair Carol Johnson, Selectperson Melanie Jewell, Selectperson Peter 
Rushton, Selectperson Daniel Newman (9 p.m. arrival), Town Manager Lorna Dee Nichols, Mary Vogel, Aaron 
Weston, Tom Streznewski, Diane Dowd, Jeff Worthington, Doris Mathias, Rod Johnson, Bruce Galouch, Sara 
Languet. 

Remote participants: Richard Bourne, Cory Alexander, Laurie’s iPad, Daniel Newman (until 9 p.m.). 

Quorum established. 

Open Meeting 

Public Comment 

Sara Languet handed out information re: RSU 18 budget to the Board of Selectpersons, this was also 

emailed out to the Board and Town Manager. 

Review and approve minutes of June 6, 2023 

Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve minutes as presented, seconded by Vice Chair Carol 

Johnson, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

CAI Presentation on Map Digitization – Aaron Weston 
Aaron gave a full presentation on the process and features of GIS mapping, digitization and layers 
etc.  
 
If the Board chooses to enlist the services of CAI for this work, it does qualify for Rescue Funds and 
would be completed within six months. The Board asked to have the Code Enforcement Officer and 
Planning Board review to see if mapping would be beneficial to them. 
 

Policy Updates – Descriptions 
Motion by Vice Chair Carol Johnson to approve the employee descriptions as presented, 
seconded by Selectperson Peter Rushton, vote 5-0. 
 

Winter Maintenance Bids 
Two bids were received: 

Horne Construction   Cummings & Sons Construction 
Year 1:  $16,600/mile    $  9,500/mile 
Year 2:  $16,800/mile    $  9,975/mile 
Year 3:  $17,000/mile    $10,473.75/mile 
Total:  $2,432,808    $1,445,626.16 
 



Page 2 of 5 
 

Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to ask the bidders to submit references and to be available to 
meet with the board at the July 11 meeting, seconded by Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 5-0. 

 
RFP (Assessing, Plumbing/Heating, Tree Services, Banking, Investments, Sand & Salt) 

 
Tree services: 1 year with option to extend if both parties agree. RFP will be due by noon on July 7 for 
the July 11 meeting and will run from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 
Motion by Selectperson Melanie Jewell to approve the RFP as amended, seconded by Vice 
Chair Carol Johnson, vote 5-0. 
 
Plumbing/Heating: three-year contract. 
Motion by Vice Chair Carol Johnson to approve the RFP as amended, Selectperson Peter 
Rushton seconded the motion, vote 5-0. 
 
Assessing: Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to table the request until the Town Manager could 
speak with the current assessor about duties and contract length, seconded by Selectperson 
Peter Rushton, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 
 
Banking: due 12 noon July 14 for July 18 meeting. 
Motion by Chair Barbara Allen to approve as amended, seconded by Selectperson Melanie 
Jewell, vote 5-0. 
 
Investment: some secured funds, take low risk, due 12 noon July 14 for July 18 meeting. 
Motion by Vice Chair Carol Johnson to approve as amended, seconded by Selectperson Peter 
Rushton, vote 5-0. 
 
Sand/Salt: Motion by Vice Chair Carol Johnson to approve as amended, seconded by 
Selectperson Peter Rushton, vote 5-0. 

 
Property Management bids 

One bid received from Spectrum in Oakland. 
 
Motion by Selectperson Melanie Jewell to have Spectrum complete the RFP with cost 
information by noon July 7 for the July 18 meeting and to invite a representative to the July 18 
meeting, seconded by Selectperson Peter Rushton, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

Appointments, Resignations 
Motion by Selectperson Melanie Jewell to table the appointment of Kelsie Lee until the next 
meeting, seconded by Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 5-0. 
 
Historian: Mary Vogel nominated Diane Dowd and expressed thanks for the work of the previous 
historian Nancy Mairs. 
 
Motion by Selectperson Melanie Jewell to appoint Diane Dowd as town historian with a stipend 
of $500/year, seconded by Selectperson Peter Rushton, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 
 
Motion by Selectperson Melanie Jewell to do a framed certified of appreciation and a card for 
former historian Nancy Mairs, seconded by Chair Barbara Allen, vote 5-0. 

 
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

Browntail Moth Nuisance Declaration 
The Selectboard suggested adding a link from the town’s website (home page) to the health officer 
page and CDC site for browntail moth educational materials. 
 
Motion by Selectperson Melanie Jewell to table this to the August 1 meeting, seconded by Vice 
Chair Carol Johnson, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS - None 

WARRANTS  

Motion to approve payroll warrant 65 in the amount of $22,572.71 by Chair Barbara Allen, 
seconded by Selectperson Peter Rushton, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 
 

Motion to approve payroll warrant 66 in the amount of $88.95 by Chair Barbara Allen, seconded 
by Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 
 
Motion to approve BMV warrant 67 in the amount of $16,848.21 by Chair Barbara Allen, 
seconded by Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 
 
 
Motion to approve payroll warrant 68 in the amount of $21,507.91 by Chair Barbara Allen, 
seconded by Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 
 
Motion to approve BMV warrant 69 in the amount of $13,784.01 by Chair Barbara Allen, 
seconded by Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 
 
Motion to approve AP warrant 70 in the amount of $56,728.90 by Chair Barbara Allen, seconded 
by Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 
 
Motion to approve payroll warrant 71 in the amount of $19,881.42 by Chair Barbara Allen, 
seconded by Selectperson Peter Rushton, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 
 
Motion to approve BMV warrant 72 in the amount of $7,285.42 by Chair Barbara Allen, seconded 
by Selectperson Melanie Jewell, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 

 

TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

Village Green Craft Fair Series –Contact Dan MacGlashing for more information. Upcoming dates: June 25, 

July 30, August 27, September 24, October 7. CFAS will also host a July 4 Yard Sale. 

Browntail Moth – We received notification June 13 that we were one of nine towns awarded grant funds for 

mitigation on town properties. Funds are good through June 2024 – we are awaiting next step instructions in 

this process. Total submitted as part of the application $27,330. 

Department Head Meeting – scheduled for June 22.  

Railroad – CEO Hans Rasmussen has provided a recap of the meeting with railroad representatives, DEP, 

Board members and residents from June 7: 



Page 4 of 5 
 

The visit was delayed due to a late running train that needed to clear the area. Present was Matt from 

CSX, Tom Daniels from TRC (the environmental clean-up contractor), Cameron DuFour from DEP, the 

chairperson of the Friends of Messalonskee, Barbara, Melanie and me.  

 Tom welcomed us with some history. This section of railbed was created in 1890. The washout site did 

not have a culvert prior to the washout incident. Water would collect and create an impound visible on 

Google Earth. Tom suspects historically waters collected in the impound would be absorbed into the 

land, find a path along the tracks to nearby culverts, or seep through the railbed. During this event the 

torrents of rain created a situation where the accumulation was far greater than the dispersion and a 

failure was imminent. Tom was able to place a ribbon in a tree marking the high-water mark for the 

impound prior to the failure. Matt shared that he had never seen the water level as high and a failure 

was anticipated. Crews kept this site and others under observation pending the event.  

 Future work will include placement of additional clean rip-rap on the embankment to support the rip-rap 

that was used for the initial repair. The impound side will receive enough to decrease the slope and 

provide additional protection from future water accumulation. The rip-rap used for the repair had 

approximately 50% fines (loose gravel). The repair occurred while storm water was still running off and 

into the impound area. Fines settled and washed down the embankment into the impound through the 

new culvert and create the sandbar that is now present. Tom indicated that there would be some 

remediation of these fines from the lake, removing the sand bar. 

Meetings with CEO and residents – Hans and I have upcoming meetings with residents to provide 

information and updates on current or past violations. 

Grub Control – The cemetery is being raked and then re-seeded and watered. Once that is complete Turf 

Doctor will come in toward the end of June to treat the area. 

Talking sign – Unfortunately, soon after getting our repaired sign back, it was down again. This was a faulty 

repair and the sign has been sent back and will be fixed again at no additional charge to the town. 

PSAP – It looks like Waterville will get approval for PSAP services. Fire Chief Dan MacKenzie has been 

keeping me updated and we should know more soon so that we can notify the State that they will be our 

provider (this information needs to be provided to the State by June 30). 

DRY HYDRANT RFP – The request for proposals has been put out to the public. There will be a preview 

meeting at 10:00 a.m. on June 23rd. Interested parties should meet at the intersection of Long Pond Drive and 

Main Street and park on Main Street. It is just a short walk down Long Pond Drive to the dry hydrant location. 

Proposals are due by 2 p.m. on June 28 and will be reviewed by the Board of Selectpersons July 11. 

 

On the radar 

Water Trustee appointments (2 positions open) 

Dalton management and lease agreements (RFP out, deadline 6/16, agenda item 6/20) 

Comprehensive Plan Committee / Plan updates (KVCOG contracted for updates) 

GIS mapping (digitized maps and parcel data – CAI will present 6/20) 

LD 2003 

Possible Broadband Committee 

Strategic Planning/Goals for 2023 



Page 5 of 5 
 

PSAP Service – confirm provider to state by end of June 

4 Day Work Week / Preferred Employer 

Permit/Code Enforcement Modules – updates 

Truck for Facilities 

CFAS repairs 

American Rescue Fund expenditures (finalize) 

Tax Commitment, Tax Stabilization Reimbursement (LD290) 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6) – personnel matter. 

Motion to exit regular session by Chair Barbara Allen at 9:09 p.m., seconded by Selectperson Peter 

Rushton, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 

Motion to enter executive session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6) – personnel matter by Chair Barbara 

Allen at 9:09 p.m., seconded by Vice Chair Carol Johnson, vote 4-0-1 absent (Daniel Newman). 

Motion to exit executive session by Selectperson Melanie Jewell at 9:56 p.m., seconded by 

Selectperson Peter Rushton, vote 5-0. 

No motions or decisions made as a result of executive session. 

Motion to adjourn by Selectperson Melanie Jewell at 9:57 p.m., seconded by Selectperson Peter 

Rushton, vote 5-0. 

 

 



Memo 

_______________________________ 

Winter Maintenance Bids 

 

Review and discussion of winter maintenance bids received. 







Memo 

_______________________________ 

CAI Map Digitization 

 

Aaron Weston made a presentation to the Board at the June 20 meeting. From that 
meeting, the Board asked what ‘extras’ we would really need and how our Code 
Enforcement Officer and Planning Board felt about what was needed. 
 
Checking with both our CEO and Chair of the Planning Board, they were in agreement 
about the possibilities of layers added to the basic data that could be included. 
Reviewing notes from the June 20 meeting and double checking with CAI (Aaron 
Weston), below are the items and costs we would like  
 
One time set up costs $35,350 (mapping, Axis, staff site, advanced queries) 
Annual fees $7,900 (hosting, queries hosting, doc upload tool, annual maintenance) 
  
If you funded the set up and first year fees from ARPA, the total would be $43,250 with 
nothing more due until 2025. 
 
Integration with iWorQ's has not been included above, if we wanted to include that, we 
should add another $3,000.  We might need the entire $3,000, might not need all of it, or 
might need a little more, but it would cover the majority of integrating. 
 
Adding in iWorQ’s integration cost of $3,000 would put us at a final expense from ARPA 
funds of $46,250. 
 



Having reviewed what the Town currently has for Tax Maps, CAI would recommend a budget of 
$29,900 for digitizing them.  This price assumes an approximate parcel count of 3050, and that 
we would be starting with a set of Tax Maps with changes drafted on them current to 4/1/23.  As 
part of this project CAI would recompile each parcel shown on the existing Tax Maps to align 
with the most recently available aerial photography.  All features on the Tax Maps would be 
captured and a map document file (.mxd) set up to generate Tax Maps based on the Town's 
existing sheet layout.  CAI would ensure linking of the parcel layer to your Trio Assessing 
database.   
 
Upon completion, CAI would deliver to the Town a new full-size set of hard copy and PDF Tax 
Maps, as well as data in the industry standard ESRI geodatabase format. 
 
Based on the Town's estimate that approximately 50 deeds/plans would be provided annually 
for updating the Tax Maps with lot splits/mergers, maintenance services would be performed for 
a fee of $6,400 a year once the maps have been digitized.  To be honest, 50 deeds/plans per 
year sounds high to me for a Town the size of Belgrade, but it could very well be the case.  If 
further discussion with the Assessor reduces that number, let me know and we can revise our 
quote.  Keep in mind, we don't need to count deeds for straight transfers, only those that require 
a changing of the lines on the Tax Maps. 
 
As we discussed, CAI also offers our clients an online service as a way for Town Staff and the 
public to take advantage of the GIS data being created with the above project.   
 
This service which is contracted in over 400 communities (70 in Maine) would allow the public 
and or staff to utilize the GIS data as well as get related Trio information for each parcel.   You 
can get more information about our AxisGIS service on our website or by watching this 
video.  Examples of our AxisGIS platform can be seen using the links below.  The one-time 
setup cost for a standard AxisGIS site is $3,000 and the annual hosting fee is $3,000.   
 
https://next.axisgis.com/ChinaME/ 
 
https://next.axisgis.com/FairfieldME/ 
 
https://www.axisgis.com/NorridgewockME/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.cai-tech.com/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Be2_mKZlso4
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Be2_mKZlso4
https://next.axisgis.com/ChinaME/
https://next.axisgis.com/FairfieldME/
https://www.axisgis.com/NorridgewockME/


EXTRAS…. 
 
Beyond the basic AxisGIS Service we offer additional add-on layers and functionality should 
they be of interest to the Town.  I have described some of these below along with their cost 
options if available.  I may not have an interest in these initially, but I wanted you to at least see 
what is available.  For these options I think it would be most helpful to review them over the 
phone or remote meeting so that they could be further described and understood.  Keep in mind 
also that these items can be added at anytime in the future: 
 
Secure Staff Site Service - One time $950 
This includes loading existing GIS data layers into a Staff Site that the Town does not want 
exposed for public viewing and configuring the Staff Site tools.  Staff Tools include things such 
as Buffering GIS Features besides parcels, Exporting data layers, generating Reports for 
Unmatched Assessor Records/Parcels as well as site usage statistics, parcel name/address 
labeling and large format printing. 
 
Individual Document Upload Tool - $700 annually 
In order to have this tool, the Town must have purchased a Secure Staff Site.  Specified users 
can be given access to this tool for attaching documents to a parcel and determining if they are 
available to the public or only to Staff.  Sample document types might be survey plans, deeds, 
permits, building floor plans, additional photos, septic designs etc. 
 
Advanced Queries Module - One-time $1,500* set up and $1,000 annually 
This tool provides Staff Users the ability to query database tables or GIS data layer attributes 
linked in AxisGIS and configured for Advanced Querying.  For example the user might query for 
all parcels greater than 10 acres that sold between X date and Y date for more than Z 
dollars.  Or, query a GIS layer such as Drainage to find all Catch Basins that have not been 
emptied since X date.  Once parcels or other GIS features are selected you can export a list of 
their attributes to Excel, generate a PDF report or mailing labels.   *This fee is for configuring the 
standard Assessing database tables in AxisGIS to be queried.  Additional fees may apply for 
querying other databases or GIS layers. 
 
AxisGIS Editor - $2,450 annual hosting fee, one time layer setup fees TBD 
The online GIS data editing service will allow select Town staff to create, edit and query GIS 
data layers using our online service.  There is a one-time setup fee (minimum $1,200) to set up 
data layers in the editing service.  Once we get additional details from the Town and determine 
the layers to be loaded, we can provide fixed costs for the setup fees.   
 
Batch Document Uploaders - Fee To Be Determined (TBD) 
Many of our clients elect to have us create Batch Uploaders for uploading Building Photos, 
Sketches or Documents to our site.  Under our standard annual hosting fee, new building 
photos and sketches configured during the initial setup are updated once annually.  With a 
Batch Uploader however the Town could regularly upload these or other documents to the 
site.  Once we have specific information regarding the files (format, size, naming convention, 
folder structure etc.) and how they are stored on the Town's server, Google Drive or through a 
document management software, we can provide a fixed cost for these.  
 
Third Party System Integrations - Fee TBD, performed Time and Materials  
CAI often works with our customers to support integrations between AxisGIS and other software 
licensed by the Town.  Typical integrations are with permitting software, asset management 
software, oblique imagery services etc.  A third-party integration may require purchase of a 



Secure Staff Site and in some cases an ArcGIS Online subscription.  Setup would be performed 
Time and Materials; additional annual hosting costs may apply.  Until we get details regarding 
iWorQs and understand the integration needs, we can't really provide accurate pricing. At a 
minimum you should plan on $3,500. 
 
Dynamic Layer Creation - One time set up fee TBD 
Often CAI builds 'Dynamic Layers" that are based off of data included in databases linked to 
AxisGIS.  For example data layers are often created to show the Neighborhood Code, Land Use 
Code, Sales or Sale Price to Assessment Ratio using values available in the Towns Assessing 
database.  If permit information is linked in AxisGIS, data layers could be created to show 
permits of a certain type or status.  Each of these data layers can be made available to the 
public or staff only and will automatically refresh the next time the source database information 
is uploaded to AxisGIS. 
 
Please note that CAI does offer discounted "Bundle" pricing should the Town be interested in 
several of the above AxisGIS Add-ons.  One example is the purchase of the Document Upload 
and Advanced Query tools.  Purchased separately these tools would have a $1,700 ($700 
Document Upload Tool and $1,000 Advanced Query Tool) annual hosting fee.  If purchased at 
the same time, the annual hosting fee is $1,400 ($300 a year savings).   
 
Please review this information and get back to me with any questions the Town may have.  If 
the Town would like to meet to further discuss this project or see a demo of the AxisGIS 
platform, I would be happy to do so.  Should the Town decide this is something that you would 
like to proceed with, let me know which services and we shall prepare a formal proposal.  
 
I look forward to hearing from you.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Aaron 

Aaron Weston 
Business Development Manager 

 

800.322.4540 x28 
direct 603.761.6241 
   
 

https://www.cai-tech.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/cai-technologies?trk=company_logo
https://www.facebook.com/caitech


American Rescue Plan Funds 

Received    $332,770 

 

Allocated: 

Dam Remediation  - 48,000 

Erosion Control   - 30,000 

Comprehensive Plan  - 28,000 

Turf Doctor   - 10,000 

 

Balance    $216,777 



 

 

Memo 
 

Request for Proposals (RFPs) 

With the approval of the Board at its June 20 meeting, request for proposals have 

gone out for the following: 

Tree Services due July 7 to be opened July 10 

Plumbing/Heating due July 7 to be opened July 10 

Assessing – The Board wanted to get input from our current assessor 

before finalizing and putting out an RFP for assessing services. After 

speaking with our current assessor, changing the contract out mid-year is 

difficult as we are finishing up and getting ready to set the mil rate and 

commit for taxes. Rob has agreed to provide something to the Board that 

he would continue to work under the lapsed contract until December 31. 

Banking due July 14 to be opened July 17 

Investment Management Services due July 14 to be opened July 17 

Sand and Salt due July 7 to be opened July 10 

In addition, the Fire Protection Dry Hydrant request for proposals went out with 

two proposals received and opened. Fire Chief Dan MacKenzie would like to 

budget for this installation in 2024. 

Following up with the only proposal received for Property Management 

Services (8 and 10 Dalton properties), I have included additional information 

here and will ask Spectrum Property Management to be present at your July 18 

meeting to discuss. 

 

 



1  

I 

TOWN OF BELGRADE RFP  

FOR 

PLUMBING & HEATING & PROPANE / NATURAL GAS (under 500,000 BTU) 

SERVICE AGREEMENT PROPOSAL 
This Proposal Application is for the period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 by and between the 
Town of Belgrade, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine and 
located in the County of Kennebec, (hereafter "OWNER") and 

______________________________ 
Name of company 

________________________________ 
Contact person 

 
 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Tax ID number 

Owner & business address 
 

__________________________ 
Email address 

 
 

____________________________                            
Business phone 

 

_______________________________ 
Cellphone 

 

All proposals must be in a sealed envelope marked: Plumbing & Heating & Propane / 
Natural Gas Proposal ATTN: Lorna Dee Nichols, or submitted electronically - and must 
be received in the Town Office at 990 Augusta Road, Belgrade, ME 04917, by noon on July 
7, 2023, and will be publicly opened on Monday, July 10, 2023. The Belgrade Selectboard will 
review the proposals at its July 11, 2023, regular meeting starting at 6:30 p.m. at the Town 
Office. 

 
The Town of Belgrade reserves the right to accept or reject any and all proposals 
with the Town's best interest in mind. The Town of Belgrade is an EOE employer. 

 
Contact Town Manager Lorna Dee Nichols at townmanager@townofbelgrade.com or 207-495-2258 
with questions concerning the RFP. 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein, the CONTRACTOR 
agrees as follows: 

mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com


2  

SCOPE OF SERVICE: BID PAGE 
 
 

___________________________ _________________________
Company 
 
 
___________________________ 
Tax ID number 
 
 
___________________________ 
Business phone 
 

 
 
Town facilities: 

• Town Office 
• Center for All Seasons 
• North Belgrade Community Center 
• Transfer Station 
• Facilities & Maintenance Garage 

Contact person 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Email 
_______________________________ 
Cell phone 
 
 
 

• Sand/Salt Shed 
• Cemeteries 
• Lakes Fire Station 
• North Belgrade Fire Station 
• Depot Fire Station 

 
The Contractor shall furnish labor to the Town at the following rates: 

Normal hours: $ _________ / hour 

Emergency call: $ _________ / hour  

% mark-up on materials / parts       ________ / each  

 

  
 

 

 



3  

AVAILABILITY: 
 

The CONTRACTOR is available 24/7 at cell # ________________.   

Contact (person) ________________________ at cell # ___________. 

Contact (person) ________________________ at cell # _________________ or by email at 

_____________________________. 

CONTRACTORS OBLIGATIONS: 
 

The CONTRACTOR will furnish all vehicles, materials, personnel, tools and equipment, 
except as otherwise specified herein, and will do everything necessary and proper to 
satisfactorily perform the services in this Agreement. 

 
The contractor SHALL be familiar will all federal, State and local statutes, laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances and orders that may in any way affect the services. 

 
Any increase in CONTRACTOR’S costs during the term of this Agreement shall be the 
sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 

 
Work completed must be billed within 30 days of the work’s completion.  All payments 
shall be approved by a warrant signed by the Selectboard. Warrants are processed on 
the first and third Tuesday of each month and all payment requests are to be given to the 
Town Treasurer by noon the Thursday prior. 

 
A record log of maintenance performed for the Town shall be maintained by service 
personnel. This record shall contain only Town sites and be provided on a monthly basis 
to the Town Manager and Facilities Director. 

 
AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT: 

 
Any amendments to said agreement must be agreed upon in writing and signed by both 
the CONTRACTOR and OWNER. 

 
RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT: 

 
Both the CONTRACTOR & OWNER have the right to terminate said agreement upon 30-
day written notice and showing proof of “just cause” as outlined by Maine State law. 

 
SIGNING OF AGREEMENT: 

 
This agreement supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 
written or oral. This agreement runs from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. 



  1 
 

TOWN OF BELGRADE 
RFP FOR 

TREE SERVICE 
  

This Proposal Application is made for the period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 by and between 
the Town of Belgrade, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine and 
located in the County of Kennebec, (hereafter “OWNER”) and   
 
 
___________________________          ____________________________ 
 Name of Company             Contact Person 
 
 
    Owner & Business Address 
 
___________________________      _____________________________ 
         Tax I. D. Number               e-mail address  
 
___________________________        _____________________________ 
 Business phone      Cell phone  

 
All proposals must be in a sealed envelope marked Tree Service Provider Proposal – Attn: Lorna 
Dee Nichols or submitted electronically and received by the Town Office at 990 Augusta Road, 
Belgrade, ME 04917, by noon on July 7, 2023, and will be publicly opened Monday, July 10, 
2023. The Belgrade Select Board will review the proposals at their July 11, 2023, regular 
meeting starting at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The Town of Belgrade reserves the right to accept or reject any and all proposal with the Town’s 
best interest in mind. The Town of Belgrade is an EOE employer. 
 
Please contact Lorna Dee Nichols, 495-2258 or townmanager@townofbelgrade.com with any 
questions concerning the RFP. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein, the CONTRACTOR 
AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 

mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com


  2 
 

Proposal Page 
 
________________________________    _________________________________ 
  Company     Contact Person 
 
________________________________       _________________________________ 

         Tax I. D. Number     e-mail address  
 
________________________________   _________________________________ 

Business phone     Cell phone  
 

Town Facilities:  
 
 Town Office     Sand/Salt Shed 
 Center for All Seasons   Lakes Fire Station 
 North Belgrade Community Center  North Belgrade Fire Station 
 Transfer Station    Depot Fire Station 
 Facilities & Maintenance Garage  Cemeteries 
 Town Parks     Town Ballfields 
 
 
The Contractor shall furnish labor to the Town at the following rates: 
 
 
Normal Hours:    $________/ hour 
 
 
Emergency Call:     $________/ hour 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  3 
 

Scope of work: 
The Town of Belgrade is responsible for the maintenance of street trees within the public right-
of-way, as well as within parks, town facilities and other town properties. 

 
AVAILABILITY 

 
 The CONTRACTOR is available 24/7 at cell # _____________  
 
Contact person (________________________) or at cell # _________________  
 
Contact person (________________________________) or work phone  
 
@ _______________ or by e-mail @ ______________________________  
 

CONTRACTORS OBLIGATIONS 
 
The CONTRACTOR shall furnish all labor, tools, equipment, materials and supervision 
necessary to perform removal of trees, pruning or other arboriculture related services. All bidders 
must have the appropriate license necessary to apply pesticides as required for maintenance of 
services proposed. 
  
The contractor SHALL be familiar will all federal, State, and local statutes, laws, rules, 
regulations, ordinances and orders which may in any way affect the services. 
 
That any increase in CONTRACTOR’S costs during the term of this Agreement shall be the sole 
responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 
 
The Contractor shall provide Town with proof of Public Liability Insurance in the amount of not 
less than Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($400,000) or such other amounts as is established by 
the Maine Tort Claims Act (14 M.R.S.A. section 8101) as amended from time to time, combined 
single limit, to protect the Contractor, any subcontractor performing covered by this Agreement, 
and the Town from claims and damages that may arise from operations under this Agreement. In 
addition, the Contractor shall provide the Town a certificate naming the Town as additionally 
insured. 
 
The Contractor shall provide the Town with proof of Worker’s Compensation Insurance in the 
amount required by Maine law and as necessary. 
 
Work completed must be billed within 30-days of the work being completed.  All payments shall 
be done by a warrant signed by the Select Board. Warrants are processed on the first and third 
Tuesday of every month and all payment requests are to be given to the Treasurer by noon of 
business the Thursday prior. 
 
A record log of maintenance performed for the Town shall be maintained by service personnel 
and provided to the Town Manager and Facilities Maintenance Director on a monthly basis.  
 
  



  4 
 

AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT 
 
Any amendments to said agreement must be agreed upon in writing by both the CONTRACTOR 
and OWNER. 
 
 RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT 
 
Both the CONTRACTOR & OWNER have the right to terminate said agreement upon 30 day 
written notice and showing proof of “Just Cause” as outlined by Maine State law. 
  
 SIGNING OF AGREEMENT 
 
This agreement supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or 
oral.  This agreement runs from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.  
 
 
 
 



Town of Belgrade 
Request for Proposals 

 

Provide winter sand / mix with salt / place in shed 
 

Agreement specifications 
 
The Town of Belgrade is accepting proposals to: 
 

1. Provide up to 6,500 yards of MDOT-approved winter road sand 
2. Screen and mix winter sand and salt at a mixture ratio to be determined yearly 
3. Place the mixture into the sand/salt shed, as directed 

 
The Town Manager and/or Road Commissioner will respond to prospective contractors’ 
questions. 

 
The Town of Belgrade will purchase road salt; the contractor will order salt as needed. 
Belgrade’s sand/salt shed holds up to 5,000 yards of mixed material. Thus, the contractor will 
have to process and load the sand/salt mixture at least two times during a twelve (12) month 
period. The contractor must have the agreed upon amount of sand/salt mixture placed into the 
shed no later than mid-October. 
 
The Plowing Contractor or the Road Commissioner will determine when or if the shed needs to 
be refilled. Sand material must be accepted by the Road Commissioner before any agreement 
is awarded by the Selectboard or any payment is made to the Contractor. The Town reserves 
the right to inspect the sand material at any time.  
 
The term of said agreement will be for the period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 with the option 
to extend the agreement for an additional year upon a mutual written agreement from both 
parties. Agreement will be based on a per-yard cost to purchase the sand, screen/mix the sand 
with salt, and load mixture into shed. 
 
The Selectboard will determine the amount of sand and salt to be purchased on a yearly basis. 
The agreement will allow for a fuel adjustment, if needed, to be determined between the 
Contractor and the Selectboard.    
 
Work completed must be billed within 30-days of the work being completed.  All payments shall 
be done by a warrant signed by the Select Board. Warrants are processed on the first and third 
Tuesday of every month and all payment requests are to be given to the Treasurer by noon of 
business the Thursday prior. 
 
Any damage done to the sand/salt shed during the processing or loading of the sand/salt 
material will be the responsibility of the contractor. The Contractor shall provide Town with proof 
of Public Liability Insurance in the amount of not less than Four Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($400,000) or such other amounts as is established by the Maine Tort Claims Act (14 M.R.S.A. 
section 8101) as amended from time to time, combined single limit, to protect the Contractor, 
any subcontractor performing covered by this Agreement, and the Town from claims and 
damages that may arise from operations under this Agreement. In addition, the Contractor shall 
provide the Town a certificate naming the Town as additionally insured. Contractor is 
responsible to ensure area is cleaned of spillage after each mixing day. 
 
The Town of Belgrade reserves the right to accept or deny any proposal to best serve the needs 
of the Town. 
 



























Town of Belgrade Proposal Sheet 
 
Proposal must be in a sealed envelope marked “Sand/Salt Proposal” or submitted electronically 
and will be accepted until 12 noon on Friday, July 7, 2023. Proposals will be publicly opened 
Monday, July 10, 2023 by the Town Manager. The Selectboard will review the proposals at its 
regularly scheduled meeting on July 11, 2023, beginning at 6:30 p.m.   
 
Proposals must include: Agreement specification, proposal sheet and proof of insurance. 
Please contact Lorna Dee Nichols, 495-2258 or townmanager@townofbelgrade.com with any 
questions concerning the RFP. 
 
I__________________________ agree to supply the sand, screen the sand, mix the sand with 
salt, and load the mixture into the Belgrade sand/salt shed at a cost of __________________ 
per yard. 
 
I have the right to request a yearly fuel charge increase, to be determined by the Belgrade 
Selectboard. 
 
I also agree to all the terms as outlined in the “agreement specifications,” as attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Signature        Date 
 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Printed name, title & company name 
 

mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com


Hi Lorna:  

I met with Cory yesterday to view 8 Dalton.  He explained that there is a tenant in 10 
Dalton so we were not able to enter.   

Full Monthly management which includes but are not limited to: collection of rents, 
enforcement of agreements, issuing of notices, interaction with tenants, coordination of 
any on site professionals that the property may need, tenant call-out service for 
weekend and afterhours issues. The fee for full monthly management is $110 per month 
per property . The fee is deducted from the gross rents collected and the income 
proceeds are directed to the owner with a management report on a monthly basis. 

Spectrum also offers Tenant Placement service in which Spectrum is hired to find and fill 
a vacancy with a qualified renter. Service includes but is not limited to: All advertising 
and marketing, showing the property, accepting applications, qualifying the tenant, lease 
or rental agreement preparation, disclosures and completion of a full move in inspection 
with photo documentation. Fee is equal to one month’s rent and is payable at the time 
of occupancy.:  

  

A few items noted: 

1.  Heat is HWBB and the fuel is oil.   

2.  The water is heated by propane 

3. There is a filter on the kitchen sink.  Is the water drinkable only from the filter? 

4.  Was either property tested for radon AIR?  If not, the State of Maine requires that all 
rental units are tested.  Law was enacted in 2014 

5.  Is oil and propane included in the rental of 8 Dalton?  If so, I'd also put a limitation on 
usage. 

6.  There is a fire pit at 8 Dalton, I would suggest this be removed.  If there were ever a 
fire and it was determined to be caused by the fire pit, your insurance may not pay the 
claim as they consider it "open burning"  

7.  Is plowing and mowing included? 

  

The rental fee will be determined upon whether heat and other utilities are included.   
We were not able to view 10 Dalton but Cory said the renter would like to stay.  
Please let me know if you require any additional information. 
Thank You. 
--  
Jayne Roberge, Rental Specialist 
Spectrum Property Management LLC 
jayne@spectrumpropertiesofmaine.com 
Direct:  (207) 649-6096 



Memo 

_______________________________ 

Appointments/Resignations 

 

Appointments:  
 

• Tabled from your June 20 meeting, Kelsie Lee to the Board of Appeals (alternate) and 
Board of Assessment & Review. 

 

• Paul Feinberg – re-appointment to the Lakes Committee 





lorna
Line

lorna
Line

lorna
Line

lorna
Line



Memo 

_______________________________ 

Fire Department appraisal of properties 

 

The Fire/Rescue Department has located a valuation company able to perform 

appraisal services on two properties identified as being suitable for a future location of a 

new fire station (property of Bill Martin on the Augusta Road and property of Morris 

Childs on the Oakland Road). 

The Department would like to discuss the services of Maine Valuation Company with 

the Board to proceed with the process. Additional information on Maine Valuation Co. is 

attached. 

Properties of interest:  

William Martin     Map 4 Lot 50 

1375 Augusta Road     4.8 Acres 

 

Maurice Childs     Map 10 Lot 37A 

154 Oakland Road     6.5 Acres 

 

  



Maine Valuation Company: Proposal for Professional Appraisal Services – Town of Belgrade Maine 

 Maine Valuation Company Proposal for Professional Appraisal Service 
To: Daniel MacKenzie, Fire Chief, Town of Belgrade, ME 04917 (firechief@townofbelgrade.com / 207-495-2285) 

From: Mark L. Plourde, MAI & Jon B. Wales 

Date: June 14, 2023 

  

Client1: Town of Belgrade Maine 

Intended Users: Town of Belgrade Maine 

Intended Use: Realty asset valuation for business decisions and potential acquisition 

Type of Value: Market Value of Real Estate 

Effective Date of Value: As Is, as of date of inspection 

Subject Property Rights: Fee Simple 

Subject Property Location: 154 Oakland Road, Belgrade, ME 04917 

Subject Property Type: Commercial 

Estimated Subject Land Area: TBD – estimated at 6 ½ acres 

Estimated Subject Gross Building Area: TBD 

Assignment Conditions: Typical 

 

Ethics Disclosure: 

 

 

In accordance with the Ethics Rule of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal 

Practice (USPAP), Maine Valuation Company and the appraiser hereby disclose to the client 

of this appraisal assignment that they have no current or prospective interest in the subject 

property or parties involved; and, that they have not provided any services regarding the 

subject property within the three year period immediately preceding acceptance of the 

assignment, as an appraiser or in any other capacity. 

 

Scope of Work:  The appraiser will inspect and describe the subject property; perform market analysis; conduct 

due diligence for and confirm the most applicable market data; develop an opinion of the 

highest and best use of the property; apply the most appropriate methods of valuation to arrive 

at credible results for the property rights to be appraised.  

  

Professional Standards: Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) of the Appraisal Foundation; 

and, the Code of Professional Ethics (CPE), & the Standards of Professional Practice (SPP) of 

the Appraisal Institute. 

 

Report Type & Deliverables: Appraisal Report // (1) PDF copy 

 

Necessary Subject Information: To be requested upon authorization of this assignment 

 
Delivery Date: 6 ± Weeks (subject to written authorization) 

Appraisal Fee: $3,500 

 
If this proposal is acceptable, please notify Maine Valuation Company ASAP by signature below and return to Mark Plourde to engage our 

services. The fee will be invoiced upon delivery of the report, due and payable net 15 days.   

 

Please direct all communications regarding this proposal to:  

Mark L. Plourde, MAI – Manager, Maine Valuation Company, P.O. Box 220, Gorham, ME 04038   

207-893-8345 // Email: mplourde@mainevaluation.com  

 

I accept this proposal and authorize the appraisal assignment in accordance with the scope of work, time, and fee quoted herein. 

 

               
Client:       Date:    Contact Person: (name, phone, email):  

 
1 Federal Banking regulations require that all appraisal reports to be used by a federally insured financial institution for underwriting a loan on real estate 

collateral in excess of $500,000 must be ordered by a financial institution as the Client.  Thus, you are encouraged to clarify this issue with a financial 

institution first if this is an intended use of the appraisal report. Once complete, the appraisal report cannot be changed or re-addressed to any other party, nor 

can any other Intended Users be added. 
 

mailto:firechief@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:mainevaluation@gmail.com


  
 

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS OF JON B. WALES 
 
 Commercial Real Estate Appraiser & Consultant 
                                                                                                                                                                                  

 
BUSINESS BACKGROUND 
 
Maine Valuation Company (Partner, 1995 - present) An independent commercial real estate appraisal, review and consulting firm providing 
a comprehensive range of professional valuation products and services throughout Maine. Mr. Wales is a Partner of the firm and presently 
manages a satellite office in Skowhegan, Maine. 
 
Bray-Wales (Owner 1989 - 1995) A commercial real estate appraisal firm with experience in appraising and consulting throughout Maine. Mr. 
Wales performed commercial, industrial, retail, recreational and institutional properties for a variety of private, corporate, and banking clients 
as well as government agencies throughout Maine. 
 
The Bray Agency  (Commercial Appraiser, 1988 - 1989) An independent appraisal firm in operation for 20 years with experience appraising 
over 12,000 commercial, residential, public, and recreational properties. The Bray Agency performed appraisals for individuals, corporations, 
cities, towns, the State of Maine, and both for profit and non-profit entities. 
 
The Wales Agency (Owner, 1979 - 1989) The company sold, leased, and provided opinions of value for residential and commercial properties 
throughout Somerset County. 
 
Depositors Trust Company (Loan Officer and Branch Manager, 1973 - 1979) Mr. Wales managed the Skowhegan branch of the Depositors 
Trust Company as well as originated all types of consumer and commercial loans. 
 
Commissioned Officer, United States Navy (1968 - 1973). 

 
SCOPE OF EXPERIENCE 
 
Numerous appraisal and consulting assignments on a variety of property types in Maine, including but not limited to: 
 

 Health Care Facilities  Nursing Homes, Boarding Homes, Assisted Living Facilities, etc.; 
 Hospitality Properties  Motels, Bed & Breakfast; 
 Retail Shopping Centers  Strip, Neighborhood, Community; 
 Recreational Facilities  Sporting Camps, Children's Camps, golf Course, Camp Grounds; 
 Special Use Properties  Church, Bank, Laundromat, Mortuary, Self-Storage; 
 Industrial Properties   Manufacturing, Warehouse, Distribution, Trucking Terminals, etc.; 
 Automotive   Dealerships, Car Wash, C-Stores w/ Gas; 
 Mixed-Use Commercial Properties All types; 
 Office Buildings   Medical, Professional; Owner-Occupant & Investment Grade; 
 Restaurants   Independent and Franchise; 
 Residential Multi-Family Projects Apartment Projects - Market & Subsidized; 
 Land/New Construction  Lots, Acreage, Subdivisions, Development Projects, etc. 

 
CLIENT SERVICES & VALUATION PRODUCTS 
 
The purpose of valuation services typically involves: purchase and sale agreements; mortgage financing; collateral evaluation; estate settlement; 
ad valorem taxation; mediation/arbitration; valuation of leased fee/leasehold interests; insurable value/ replacement cost studies; feasibility, 
marketability, and highest and best use analyses for evaluation & planning purposes. Client services and valuation products consist of 
Commercial Real Estate Appraisals and Reports; due diligence/research studies; and private consultation. Computer literacy in Excel, Word, 
and Argus, enhances the analytical and reporting service to clients. Professional service has been provided to numerous financial institutions, 
governmental agencies, insurance companies, corporations, lawyers, estates and private individuals. 
 
Mr. Wales has also qualified as an expert witness in Real Estate Valuation before Somerset County Superior Court, Franklin County Superior 
Court, Southern Kennebec County District Court, Somerset County District Court and Bankruptcy Court. 



 
 

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS OF JON B. WALES 
 
 Commercial Real Estate Appraiser & Consultant 
                                                                                                                                                                                
 
REAL ESTATE EDUCATION 
 
Jon B. Wales is a graduate of the University of Rochester with a B.A. Degree in Economics. He attended Thomas College taking real estate 
courses required for the real estate broker's license. Real estate courses successfully completed to date, as offered by the American Institute of 
Real Estate Appraisers and the Appraisal Institute are: 
 
. Real Estate Appraisal Principals 
. Basic Valuation Procedures 
. Capitalization Theory and Techniques, Part A  
. Capitalization Theory and Techniques, Part B 
. Case Studies in Real Estate Valuation 
. Valuation Analysis and Report Writing 
. Standards of Professional Practice, Parts A & B 
. Computer Assisted Investment Analysis 
. Litigation Valuation 
 
Many seminars have also been attended including: 
. The Americans with Disabilities Act 
. Government Regulations 
. Advanced Income Capitalization 
. The Appraisal of Special Use Properties 
 
 
PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 
 
. Maine Certified General Appraiser, #CG187 
 

 



 
 

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS OF MARK L. PLOURDE, MAI 
 

Commercial Real Estate Appraiser, Reviewer & Consultant 
 
BUSINESS BACKGROUND 
 
Maine Valuation Company (MAI/Managing Partner, 1994 - present) Maine Valuation Company is an independent commercial real estate 
appraisal, review and consulting firm providing a comprehensive range of professional valuation products and services throughout Maine. 
 
Fleet Bank of Maine  (Senior Review Appraiser, 1991 - 1994) Responsibilities included technical commercial appraisal reviews for 
compliance with the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act (FIRREA), the Uniform Standards of Professional 
Appraisal Practice (USPAP) and Fleet Financial Group Appraisal Policy & Documentary Standards; quality control of departmental appraisal 
reviews; management of external appraiser vendor pool; internal collateral evaluation, and consultation on commercial, industrial, and 
residential real estate located throughout the state of Maine, ranging from $10,000 to $20,000,000 in value.  Mark was Appointed Appraisal 
Department Team Leader and Banking Officer. 
 
Buzzell-Plourde Associates  (Appraiser/Partner, 1987 - 1991) Mark performed commercial, industrial, and multi-family residential appraisal 
assignments in both narrative and form reports on various property types; conducted extensive market research & due diligence; performed 
internal residential review function; and appraisal office management. 
 
Appraisal Associates (Staff Appraiser, 1984 - 1987) Mark prepared residential, commercial, and industrial appraisals and conducted market 
research for appraisal assignments. Maine Valuation Company acquired the assets of Appraisal Associates in March of 1997. 
 
SCOPE OF EXPERIENCE 
 
Numerous appraisals, review & consulting assignments on a variety of property types in Maine, including but not limited to: 
 

 Retail Shopping Centers   • Strip, Neighborhood, Community, Outlet 
 Hospitality Properties   • Hotels, Motels, Bed & Breakfast, Inns 
 Residential Multi-Family Projects  • Apartment Projects - Market & Subsidized 
 Mixed-Use Commercial Properties  • All types of Mixed-Use properties 
 Office Buildings    • Medical, Professional; Owner-Occupant, & Investment Grade 
 Industrial Properties    • Manufacturing, Warehouse, Distribution, Trucking Terminals, etc. 
 Special Purpose Properties   • Self-Storage, Churches, Recreational, Institutional, etc. 
 Automotive    • Dealerships, Car Wash, Mini-Lube, etc. 
 Restaurants    • Independent, Chain, and Franchise 
 Land/New Construction   • Lots, Acreage, Development Projects, etc. 

 
CLIENT SERVICES & VALUATION PRODUCTS 
 
The purpose of professional valuation services typically involve purchase and sale agreements, mortgage financing, collateral valuation, estate 
settlement, mediation/arbitration, valuation of leased fee/leasehold interests, insurable value/ replacement cost studies, feasibility, marketability, 
and highest and best use analyses for evaluation & planning purposes. 
 
Client services and valuation products consist of Commercial Real Estate Appraisals and Reports; USPAP Standard Rule #3 Appraisal Review 
Reports; due diligence/research studies; and private consultation. Computer literacy in ARGUS, Word, and Excel, enhances the analytical and 
reporting service to clients. Professional service has been provided to numerous financial institutions, governmental agencies, insurance 
companies, corporations, lawyers, estates, and private individuals. 

 
EXPERT WITNESS 
 
Mark has qualified as an expert witness in Real Estate Valuation in Maine before: the York County Superior Court; the Androscoggin County 
Superior Court; the Cumberland County Superior Court; and, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court, District of Maine; the Maine State Claims 
Commission; and, the Suffolk County Probate and Family Court in Massachusetts. Mark has also testified on numerous occasions as 
Investigator for the Maine Board of Real Estate Appraisers in professional practice matters, as well as the State Board of Property Tax Review. 



 
 

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS OF MARK L. PLOURDE, MAI 
 

 Commercial Real Estate Appraiser, Reviewer & Consultant 
                                                                                                                                                                                  
 
REAL ESTATE EDUCATION 
 
Mark L. Plourde, MAI, is a cum laude graduate of the University of Southern Maine with a BS degree in Business Administration. He attended 
the University of Maine at Orono, Portland/Gorham, and Presque Isle for various Journalism, Business, and Real Estate related courses with a 
focus on real estate valuation, law, and management.  A partial list of real estate appraisal courses successfully completed includes: 
 
 An Introduction to Appraising Real Property, Society of Real Estate Appraisers, Course #101 
 Applied Residential Property Valuation, Society of Real Estate Appraisers, Course #102 
 Principles of Income Property Appraising, Society of Real Estate Appraisers, Course #201 
 Applied Income Property Valuation, Society of Real Estate Appraisers, Course #202 
 Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice, Appraisal Institute, Courses #410, #420, & #430 
 Computer Assisted Investment Analysis, Appraisal Institute, Course #6 
 The Comprehensive Appraisal Workshop,  Ted Whitmer, MAI, CCIM, J.D., MBA 
 Condemnation Appraising: Basic Principals & Applications,  Appraisal Institute, Course #710 
 Condemnation Appraising: Advanced Topics & Applications,  Appraisal Institute, Course #720 
 
Numerous seminars on appraisal methodology, techniques, and regulations have also been attended, such as: 
   

 Financial Calculator Seminar 
 Subdivision Analysis 
 Understanding Limited Appraisals and Reporting Options 
 The Appraisers Complete Review 
 The Uniform Commercial and Industrial Appraisal Report 
 The Appraiser as an Expert Witness 
 The Americans with Disabilities Act 
 Real Estate Inspections 
 Rates, Ratios, and Reasonableness 
 Hotel & Motel Valuation 
 Special Purpose Properties 
 Health Care & Retirement Appraisals 
 The Appraisal of Special Use Properties 
 The Internet and Appraising 
 Detrimental Conditions 
 Business Enterprise Valuation 
 Easement Valuation 
 Appraising Auto Dealership Facilities 
 Computer-Enhanced Cash Flow Modeling, AI Course 810 
 Attacking & Defending Appraisals in Litigation 
 Real Estate Finance, Statistics, and Valuation Modeling, AI Course 5/1654 
 Complex Litigation Appraisal Case Studies 
 Commercial Bankruptcy, Workouts, and the Valuation Process 
 Fundamentals of Separating Real Property, Personal Property, and Intangible Business Assets 
 Apartment Appraisal: Concepts and Applications 
 Tenant Credit Analysis 
 Office Building Valuation: A Contemporary Perspective 
 SBA 504 Loan Program 
 Online Data Verification Methods 
 Overview of Appraising Convenience Stores 
 Understanding Flood Zone Mapping & Risk 
 Online Rates and Ratios: Making Sense of GIMs, OARs, and DCF 



 
 

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS OF MARK L. PLOURDE, MAI 
  

Commercial Real Estate Appraiser, Reviewer & Consultant 
 
PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 
 

 The Appraisal Institute 
MAI Designated Member of the Appraisal Institute, #10609 (1994+) 
Young Advisory Council, the Appraisal Institute (1995, 1996)  
Regional Ethics and Counseling Panel, the Appraisal Institute (1999) 
President, State of Maine Chapter of the Appraisal Institute (2000) 
Leadership Development and Advisory Council, the Appraisal Institute (2000) 
Executive Director/Secretary, Maine Chapter of the Appraisal Institute (2007-2008) 
Treasurer, Maine Chapter of the Appraisal Institute (2016-2017) 

 
 Maine Board of Real Estate Appraisers 

Maine Certified General Appraiser, # CG-258 (1991+) 
Investigator to the Maine Board of Real Estate Appraisers (1998-2004) 

 Appraiser Member, Maine Board of Real Estate Appraisers, (2008-2009) 
 

 Maine State Claims Commission 
Appraiser Member, State Claims Commission, State of Maine (1998-2002) 

 
PARTIAL CLIENT LIST 
 
Androscoggin Bank 
AT&T Capital Corporation  
BankNorth N.A. 
Bank of America 
Bank of Maine 
Bangor Savings Bank  
Bar Harbor Banking & Trust Co. 
Bath Savings Institution 
Bath Iron Works 
Bernstein Shur 
Biddeford Savings Bank 
Boulos Company 
Camden National Bank 
Cherryfield Foods 
Cianbro Corporation 
Comerica Bank 
Citizens Bank 
City of Portland 
City of South Portland 
Drummond Woodsum  
Eastern Maine Health Care 
First Citizen’s Bank 
First Atlantic Corporation 
First National Bank of Damariscotta 
FleetBoston Financial 
Fleet Financial Group 
Gardiner Savings Institution, FSB 
Genest Concrete Co. 
G.E. Capital 
General Services Administration  
Goodwill Industries  
Gorham Savings Bank 

Grey Hound Bus Lines  
Hancock Lumber Company 
Howard Bank 
J.B. Brown & Sons 
Jensen Baird Gardner & Henry 
Katahdin Trust Company 
Kennebunk Land Trust 
Key Bank 
Inland Hospital 
Leblanc & Young, P.A. 
Libra Foundation 
L.L. Bean Company 
Linda Bean 
Maine Bank & Trust Company 
Maine Coast Heritage Trust 
Maine Department of Conservation 
Maine Department of Transportation 
Maine Medical Center 
Machias Savings Bank 
Maine State Housing Authority 
Mechanics Savings Bank 
Merrill Merchants Bank 
Midland Loan Service 
National Cooperative Bank 
Norman Hanson & DeTroy 
Northern Utilities 
Northeast Bank 
Norway Savings Bank 
Peoples Heritage Bank 
Perkins, Thompson, Hinckley & Keddy  
People’s United Bank 
 

Peter B. Sang, P.A. 
Pepsi Beverages Company 
Pierce Atwood 
PNC Bank 
Preti Flaherty 
Pride Manufacturing Company 
Resolution Trust Company 
Rudman & Winchell 
Salvation Army 
Saco & Biddeford Savings Institution 
Skelton Taintor 
Skowhegan Savings Bank 
Small Business Administration 
Smith & Wesson, Inc. 
Southern Pacific Bank 
TD Bank, N.A. 
The First, N.A. 
The Trust for Public Land 
Troubh Heisler 
United Kingfield Bank 
University of Maine 
Union Central Life Insurance Co. 
USDA - Rural Development 
US Fish and Wildlife Service 
Verrill Dana 
Wal-Mart, Inc. 
Webber Energy Company 
Wells Fargo Bank 

 



 

 
 

 
 
 



Memo 

_______________________________ 

Mil Rate / Tax Commitment 

Assessing agent Rob Duplisea has put together three mil rate options for the Board’s review 

and consideration. The net to be raised by property tax is up by 7.5% over last year. Rob will be 

in attendance to discuss his recommendation with the Board. 

 



Municipality:

1. Total taxable value of real estate 1

2. Total taxable value of personal property 2

3. Total taxable value of real estate and personal property (Line 1 plus line 2) 3 $1,047,530,700
(from page 1, line 11)

4. a. Total exempt value for all homestead exemptions granted 4a.

b. Homestead exemption reimbursement value 4b.

5. a. Total exempt value of all BETE qualified property 5a.

b. BETE exemption reimbursement value 5b.

6. Total valuation base (Line 3 + line 4b + line 5b) 6 $1,067,873,574

 ASSESSMENTS

7. County tax 7

8. Municipal appropriation 8

9. TIF financial plan amount 9

10. Local education appropriation 10

11. Total appropriations (Add lines 7 through 10) 11 $12,204,246.00

ALLOWABLE DEDUCTIONS 250000

12. Anticipated state municipal revenue sharing 12

13. Other revenues: (All other revenues that have been formally 13

appropriated to reduce the commitment such as excise tax revenue, T.G. reimbursement, renewable energy reimbursement,
trust fund or bank interest income, appropriated surplus revenue, etc. (Do not include any homestead or BETE reimbursement)

14. Total deductions (Line 12 plus line 13) 14 $2,715,047.00

15. Net to be raised by local property tax rate (Line 11 minus line 14) 15 $9,489,199.00
A B C

16. $9,489,199.00 x 1.05   = $9,963,658.95 Maximum Allowable Tax
(Amount from line 15)

17. $9,489,199.00 ÷ $1,067,873,574  = 0.00889 Minimum Tax Rate
(Amount from line 15) (Amount from line 6)

18. $9,963,658.95 ÷ $1,067,873,574  = 0.00933 Maximum Tax Rate
(Amount from line 16) (Amount from line 6)

19. $1,047,530,700.00 x 0.00890  = $9,323,023.23 Tax for Commitment
(Amount from line 3) (Selected Rate) (Enter on page 1, line 13)

20. $9,489,199.00 x 0.05  = $474,459.95 Maximum Overlay
(Amount from line 15)  

21. $17,761,124 x 0.00890  = $158,074.00 Homestead Reimbursement
(Amount from line 4b.) (Selected Rate) (Enter on line 8, Assessment Warrant)

22. $2,581,750 x 0.00890  = $22,977.58 BETE Reimbursement
(Amount from line 5b.) (Selected Rate) (Enter on line 9, Assessment Warrant)

23. $9,504,074.81 - $9,489,199.00  = $14,875.81 Overlay
(Line 19 plus lines 21 and 22 )

SAMPLE 2023 MUNICIPAL TAX RATE CALCULATION FORM - DO NOT FILE

8.90 mil rate

BE SURE TO COMPLETE THIS FORM BEFORE FILLING IN THE TAX ASSESSMENT WARRANT

$1,043,072,700
(from page 1, line 6)

(must match page 2, line 16c + 16d)

$4,458,000
(from page 1, line 10)

$23,369,900
(from Page 1, line 14f)

$17,761,124

$5,163,500
(from page 2, line 15c)

$2,581,750

$846,767.00

$4,604,245.00

$0

- 10 -

   (If Line 23 exceeds Line 20 select a lower tax rate.)

Results from this completed form should be used to prepare the Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant, 
Certificate of Assessment to Municipal Treasurer and Municipal Valuation Return.

$6,753,234.00

$350,000.00

$2,365,047.00

(Amount from line 15) (Enter on line 5, Assessment Warrant)



Municipality:

1. Total taxable value of real estate 1

2. Total taxable value of personal property 2

3. Total taxable value of real estate and personal property (Line 1 plus line 2) 3 $1,047,530,700
(from page 1, line 11)

4. a. Total exempt value for all homestead exemptions granted 4a.

b. Homestead exemption reimbursement value 4b.

5. a. Total exempt value of all BETE qualified property 5a.

b. BETE exemption reimbursement value 5b.

6. Total valuation base (Line 3 + line 4b + line 5b) 6 $1,067,873,574

 ASSESSMENTS

7. County tax 7

8. Municipal appropriation 8

9. TIF financial plan amount 9

10. Local education appropriation 10

11. Total appropriations (Add lines 7 through 10) 11 $12,204,246.00

ALLOWABLE DEDUCTIONS 250000

12. Anticipated state municipal revenue sharing 12

13. Other revenues: (All other revenues that have been formally 13

appropriated to reduce the commitment such as excise tax revenue, T.G. reimbursement, renewable energy reimbursement,
trust fund or bank interest income, appropriated surplus revenue, etc. (Do not include any homestead or BETE reimbursement)

14. Total deductions (Line 12 plus line 13) 14 $2,715,047.00

15. Net to be raised by local property tax rate (Line 11 minus line 14) 15 $9,489,199.00
A B C

16. $9,489,199.00 x 1.05   = $9,963,658.95 Maximum Allowable Tax
(Amount from line 15)

17. $9,489,199.00 ÷ $1,067,873,574  = 0.00889 Minimum Tax Rate
(Amount from line 15) (Amount from line 6)

18. $9,963,658.95 ÷ $1,067,873,574  = 0.00933 Maximum Tax Rate
(Amount from line 16) (Amount from line 6)

19. $1,047,530,700.00 x 0.00895  = $9,375,399.77 Tax for Commitment
(Amount from line 3) (Selected Rate) (Enter on page 1, line 13)

20. $9,489,199.00 x 0.05  = $474,459.95 Maximum Overlay
(Amount from line 15)  

21. $17,761,124 x 0.00895  = $158,962.06 Homestead Reimbursement
(Amount from line 4b.) (Selected Rate) (Enter on line 8, Assessment Warrant)

22. $2,581,750 x 0.00895  = $23,106.66 BETE Reimbursement
(Amount from line 5b.) (Selected Rate) (Enter on line 9, Assessment Warrant)

23. $9,557,468.49 - $9,489,199.00  = $68,269.49 Overlay
(Line 19 plus lines 21 and 22 )

SAMPLE 2023 MUNICIPAL TAX RATE CALCULATION FORM - DO NOT FILE

8.95 mil rate

BE SURE TO COMPLETE THIS FORM BEFORE FILLING IN THE TAX ASSESSMENT WARRANT

$1,043,072,700
(from page 1, line 6)

(must match page 2, line 16c + 16d)

$4,458,000
(from page 1, line 10)

$23,369,900
(from Page 1, line 14f)

$17,761,124

$5,163,500
(from page 2, line 15c)

$2,581,750

$846,767.00

$4,604,245.00

$0

- 10 -

   (If Line 23 exceeds Line 20 select a lower tax rate.)

Results from this completed form should be used to prepare the Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant, 
Certificate of Assessment to Municipal Treasurer and Municipal Valuation Return.

$6,753,234.00

$350,000.00

$2,365,047.00

(Amount from line 15) (Enter on line 5, Assessment Warrant)



Municipality:

1. Total taxable value of real estate 1

2. Total taxable value of personal property 2

3. Total taxable value of real estate and personal property (Line 1 plus line 2) 3 $1,047,530,700
(from page 1, line 11)

4. a. Total exempt value for all homestead exemptions granted 4a.

b. Homestead exemption reimbursement value 4b.

5. a. Total exempt value of all BETE qualified property 5a.

b. BETE exemption reimbursement value 5b.

6. Total valuation base (Line 3 + line 4b + line 5b) 6 $1,067,873,574

 ASSESSMENTS

7. County tax 7

8. Municipal appropriation 8

9. TIF financial plan amount 9

10. Local education appropriation 10

11. Total appropriations (Add lines 7 through 10) 11 $12,204,246.00

ALLOWABLE DEDUCTIONS 250000

12. Anticipated state municipal revenue sharing 12

13. Other revenues: (All other revenues that have been formally 13

appropriated to reduce the commitment such as excise tax revenue, T.G. reimbursement, renewable energy reimbursement,
trust fund or bank interest income, appropriated surplus revenue, etc. (Do not include any homestead or BETE reimbursement)

14. Total deductions (Line 12 plus line 13) 14 $2,715,047.00

15. Net to be raised by local property tax rate (Line 11 minus line 14) 15 $9,489,199.00
A B C

16. $9,489,199.00 x 1.05   = $9,963,658.95 Maximum Allowable Tax
(Amount from line 15)

17. $9,489,199.00 ÷ $1,067,873,574  = 0.00889 Minimum Tax Rate
(Amount from line 15) (Amount from line 6)

18. $9,963,658.95 ÷ $1,067,873,574  = 0.00933 Maximum Tax Rate
(Amount from line 16) (Amount from line 6)

19. $1,047,530,700.00 x 0.00900  = $9,427,776.30 Tax for Commitment
(Amount from line 3) (Selected Rate) (Enter on page 1, line 13)

20. $9,489,199.00 x 0.05  = $474,459.95 Maximum Overlay
(Amount from line 15)  

21. $17,761,124 x 0.00900  = $159,850.12 Homestead Reimbursement
(Amount from line 4b.) (Selected Rate) (Enter on line 8, Assessment Warrant)

22. $2,581,750 x 0.00900  = $23,235.75 BETE Reimbursement
(Amount from line 5b.) (Selected Rate) (Enter on line 9, Assessment Warrant)

23. $9,610,862.17 - $9,489,199.00  = $121,663.17 Overlay
(Line 19 plus lines 21 and 22 )

SAMPLE 2023 MUNICIPAL TAX RATE CALCULATION FORM - DO NOT FILE

9.0 mil rate

BE SURE TO COMPLETE THIS FORM BEFORE FILLING IN THE TAX ASSESSMENT WARRANT

$1,043,072,700
(from page 1, line 6)

(must match page 2, line 16c + 16d)

$4,458,000
(from page 1, line 10)

$23,369,900
(from Page 1, line 14f)

$17,761,124

$5,163,500
(from page 2, line 15c)

$2,581,750

$846,767.00

$4,604,245.00

$0

- 10 -

   (If Line 23 exceeds Line 20 select a lower tax rate.)

Results from this completed form should be used to prepare the Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant, 
Certificate of Assessment to Municipal Treasurer and Municipal Valuation Return.

$6,753,234.00

$350,000.00

$2,365,047.00

(Amount from line 15) (Enter on line 5, Assessment Warrant)



Memo 

_______________________________ 
4 Day Work Week 

The town office staff have expressed interest in moving to a four-day work week and 

have asked me to bring the idea to the board's attention.  This schedule is becoming 

more common in municipalities across Maine.  Moving to a four-day work week 

increases morale, invites more applicants for open positions and is a great retention tool. 

Attached for your review is an article which appeared in the January issue of Maine 

Town and City. What really stuck out to me in the article is the following: 

From 1997 to 2021, the number of jobs held by the age group 55-64 in state and local 

government grew from around 14% to about 26%! The age group 65+ grew from about 

4% to 10% during the same time period while ages 19-44 have steadily declined and 

those aged 18 and under has remained steady at a very low 4%. 

I personally see this as a problem on the horizon as many of our veteran employees 

(those who have served for many years with an amazing amount of knowledge and 

experience) will be retiring within 10 years. 

Below is information from the Town of Oakland who recently went to the 4-day week. 

We have been working 4 day work weeks now for about a year. We’ve staggered 

days off so that we could remain open 5 days a week. My staff found that a 4 and 

3 schedule was great for their homelife and overall wellbeing. This 4 and 3 

schedule allowed us to open earlier and close later (10 hour days). We went from 

an 8:30a – 4:30p schedule to a 7-5 schedule. Our tax payers quickly took 

advantage of these extended hours. Doctor’s appointments could be scheduled 

without taking days off and sick time almost came to an end.  

The issue that developed was vacation time. We are a very busy office and some 

days we only had two front staff members. With summer approaching and boat 

and ATV registrations bringing in busier days, we found that this was 

problematic.  

We had a decision to make, go back to our old schedule, or everyone taking the 

same day off. It was a no-brainer for the crew. With a little research, we were 

able to convince my Council to support this idea.  

It’s been proven that a 3 day weekend is great for employee attraction and 

retention. I placed a large sign outside the town office letting the public know that 

we will be changing our office hours. The public has been very supportive so far. 



The sign has been in place for the past month. This week is the last week that we 

will be open on Fridays.  

The staff would welcome the opportunity to begin discussion with the board about the 

possibility of moving to a four-day work week in Belgrade. 

 



Stetkis also said training new hires is a challenge, par-
ticularly motor vehicles because the Bureau of Motor Ve-
hicles training doesn’t include the TRIO/Harris electronic 
process.

The part-time dilemma
In Scarborough, one of the longtime trouble spots is 

part-time employees. Community Services Director Todd 
Souza describes his department as a “catch-all” that in-
cludes not only before- and after- school programs, but 
also parks and grounds, the town’s cable station and 
U.S. passports. 

Souza says while his full-time staff can handle the 
pressure and is willing to flex when there is a need, it 
is difficult to cover odd shifts, such as the two to three 
hours after school daily. There is a definite need for the 
childcare, he said. “We turn away 100 
people a year, easy. We don’t have the 
space and the staff.”

Even before 2020, part time was 
struggling, Souza said. “We found we 
could not hire part-time, seasonal staff.” 
The same applied to the after-school 
program. “Part time is still sketchy.”

Souza said the town has had to adjust 
in different ways, such as in hiring 15- to 
18-year-olds for summer camp. It also 
has added incentives, including adding 
bonuses to the childcare program for 
number of shifts worked.

Schedule flexibility has had to be ad-
justed, too, on commitment to number 
of days and hours. It means you need 
more employees to cover, Souza said. “It 
actually costs more.”

Bath Parks and Recreation Director 
Steve Balboni also can’t find enough 
people to staff maintenance for the 
Parks and Cemeteries division. “We still 
get the job done, but there is certainly a 
longer time that it takes,” he said. 

“What I find in the parks and recre-
ation field is that we all do everything 
we can to keep providing services to our 
citizens,” Balboni said. “Here in Bath, it 
means current staff take on more than 
what is in their job description. For ex-
ample, as we went over a year without 
an arborist, I had to respond to citizen 
requests and subcontract out the work 
that normally would be done in house.” 

The education pipeline
Finding trained, qualified individuals for critical roles 

has plagued Lincoln for at least a couple of years, said 
Town Manager Rick Bronson. 

“Like many, our police department remains almost 
eternally short on staff,” he said. “We have not been able 
to meet what we call full staff for more than two years. 
Currently we would, if we could, hire as many as six more 
immediately.”

Bronson points to a bottleneck at the Maine Criminal 
Justice Academy, saying that until it runs at a sufficient 
scale, “we will never get back to full staff.” And he asks 
these questions: “... Is it too difficult for putting simple 
primary responders on the street? Are the citizens bet-
ter off to get a potentially lesser responder but at least 

28   MAINE TOWN & CITY   JANUARY 2023



get some response or better off to wait, sometimes for 
extended periods to get a more trained officer, if in fact 
any?”

Lincoln also is struggling to have a full staff of EMS 
professionals. Bronson again points to the need for 
more schools across the state, as well as whether stan-
dards are set too high, which hobbles the ability to have 
enough staff to make timely responses. 

Easton Town Manager Gardner weighed in on edu-
cation, saying that the University of Maine’s Master of 
Public Administration program was a pipeline. The pro-
gram was eliminated from the school’s offerings in June 
2012 due to low enrollment. 

The path to municipal employment needs to be in 
some type of curriculum, Gardner said. “We’ve got to 
start branching out.”

Included in that discussion must be benefits and not 
just health insurance. “Try to find the thing that matters 
to the younger generation,” he said.

Attention to retention
“What is meaningful? Is it just the pay?” asked Gard-

ner. 
“Employees, they want to feel like they’re making a 

difference,” Biddeford’s Bennett said. “Rethink the rela-
tionship with our employees. It’s a different relationship 
than throwing a bonus at somebody.”

He added, “This issue is not going to go away.”
Biddeford has focused on mental health, for example, 

and providing services to all employees, including an 
app the city pays for that gets an employee a virtual 
appointment with a specialist in three days or less. “Just 
recognize that those issues are so much more import-
ant,” he said. 

The city also gave surprise bonuses to non-union 
employees in December and raises of three percent, 
although five percent was budgeted. However, Bennett 
said, he reserved the right to increase wages at a later 
date if necessary. “Nobody complained,” he said.

Orono’s Wilson said that staff is dealing with much 
more now, specifically the way socially acceptable be-
havior has changed, putting employees in front of ag-
gressive residents.

It takes a toll, she said. “It’s changed the dynamic.”
When staff asks to change from a less public-facing 

role, she said that has to be a factor. 
It’s about “caring about employees,” Bennett said, 

“making an investment in employees.” 

          Meeting
  Municipal Training 
& Education Needs 

– A Series.

The future of Maine’s municipal workforce 

represents a set of multi-faceted challenges 

that command multi-faceted solutions. Maine’s 

towns and cities are collectively grappling with 

the ongoing pandemic, effects of inflation, and 

demographic changes in the state, which pres-

ent questions around recruiting and retaining 

employees; educating and training their in-

cumbent workforce for the changing nature of 

municipal government; and staying up-to-date 

on emerging educational needs. 

However, there is a silver lining. Through it all, 

MMA members are exploring and embracing 

innovative strategies and resources for work-

force development. In 2023, the Association 

will be highlighting these efforts, as well as 

new initiatives in development and currently 

in use by members, partners, and MMA to meet 

workforce development needs through the 

publication of six articles throughout the year.  

The first installment of the “Meeting Munic-

ipal Training & Education Needs” series will 

be published in the March edition of the mag-

azine and focus on the resources and funds 

available to support workforce development 

and training.  

  MAINE TOWN & CITY  JANUARY 2023  29



Memo 

_______________________________ 

Warrants 

Payroll Warrant 73 $    2,592.85  

Payroll Warrant 74 $  24,416.66  

BMV Warrant 75 $    7,397.36  

Registry of Deeds/Liens Warrant 76 $    1,026.00 

Payroll Warrant 77 $  24,191.59 

BMV Warrant 78 $    5,199.50 

State Payables 79 $  18,023.15 

Payroll Warrant 80 $    2,011.16 

AP Warrant 81 $618,495.97 









































1 
 

TM Report 07/11/2023          

Village Green Craft Fair Series –Contact Dan MacGlashing for more information. Upcoming  

dates: July 30, August 27, September 24, October 7.  

Browntail Moth – We received the contract between the Town and State and have the signed 

document on file. Funds must be used by June, 2024 and will be done by reimbursement. The 

plan will be to begin mitigation in April, 2024 for the upcoming moth cycle. 

Grub Control – Grub treatment is all done. These bills will be on the next warrant. Lots of the 

seeding has been done in the cemetery as weather permits.  

CFAS – Facilities Maintenance is waiting on quotes for the roof and chimney repairs and will get 

that scheduled as soon as we approve the quotes.  

NBCC – Facilities Maintenance is also waiting for a roof quote at the North Belgrade 

Community Center and will get that scheduled as soon as we approve the quote.   

Talking sign – The sign is back and running again. 

PSAP – We received the contract for services through Waterville with services taking effect July 

12. The State of Maine has been notified of the provider update. 

DRY HYDRANT RFP – We received two proposals that were opened June 28. Fire Chief Dan 

MacKenzie would like to budget for this in 2024. These two proposals are included in your 

packet for July 11. 

AUTHOR PAUL DOIRON – A great event held at the CFAS June 29. At least 200 people 

showed up to hear Paul Doiron talk about his latest book, set on Great Pond. It started with a 

catered meet-and-greet, then the author read a passage from the book, held a Q and A, and 

signed lots of books. The library and bookstore did Belgrade proud! 

4th of JULY – activities were well attended due to a clearing with the rainy weather system that 

has been plaguing Maine the last several weeks. 

RFP’s – Banking and Investment Management services request for proposals are due July 14 

and will be included for your July 18 meeting along with follow up and discussion on Property 

Management services for the Dalton properties with Spectrum Property Management. All other 

RFP’s are on your agenda for July 11. 

OPEN POSITIONS - We will be advertising for three positions (1) assistant to the Recreation 

Director to fill a vacancy and (1) part-time Deputy Clerk with the pending retirement of Charlene 

Houle and (1) full-time Deputy Clerk with the resignation of Deb Nichols. 

CODE ENFORCEMENT - To date 52 plumbing permits and 40 building permits have been 

issued. Historically building permits exceed plumbing permits, but we are seeing a change from 

building decks and accessory structures to interior renovations.  

Most of the violations our Code Enforcement Officer is pursuing focus on sanitary septic 

systems and the use of temporary portable toilets as permanent facilities. Port-a-Jons have 

become a large gray area in the enforcement of black water disposal. 



2 
 

VILLAGE GREEN CONCERT SERIES 6-8 p.m. – July 13 Pat Colwell and The Soul 

Sensations; July 20 Denny Breau; July 27 The Fossils; August 3 Bob Colwell Trio; August 10 

Midnight Breakfast; August 17 The Maniacs; August 24 Frenzie; August 31 The Magnie Fam-

Jamily; September 7 Chris Poulson and The Social Club. 

 

 

On the radar 

Water Trustee appointments (2 positions open) 

Comprehensive Plan Committee / Plan updates (KVCOG contracted for updates) 

LD 2003 

Possible Broadband Committee 

Strategic Planning/Goals for 2023 

Permit/Code Enforcement Modules – updates 

Truck for Facilities 

CFAS repairs 

American Rescue Fund expenditures (finalize) 

Tax Stabilization Reimbursement (LD290) 


	1 July 11 Draft Agenda.pdf
	2 A memo minutes
	2 B Minutes June 20 2023 DRAFT
	3 A 1 memo winter maintenance bids
	3 A 2 winter maintenance bids June 2023
	3 B memo CAI
	3 B 2 CAI map digitization
	3 B 3 American Rescue Plan Funds
	3 C 1 memo rfps
	2023_plumbing_rfp
	2023_tree_service_rfp
	2023_winter_sand_and_sand-salt_mix_rfp_final
	Property Mgmt information from Jayne_Spectrum
	4 A 1 memo appointments resignations
	4 A 2 kelsie lee committee app
	4 A 3 Feinberg lakes committee application for appointment
	4 B 1 memo fire dept appraisals
	4 B 2 MVC Appraisal Proposal 154 Oakland Road Belgrade ME (002)
	4 B 3 2023 Qualifications of Jon B. Wales
	4 B 4 2023 Qualifications MVC Appraisal
	4 C 1 memo mil rate
	4 C 2 2023 Mil Rate at 8.90
	4 C 3 2023 Mil Rate at 8.95
	4 C 4 2023 Mil Rate at 9.00
	4D 1 memo four day work week
	4D 2 4 day work week article MMA from JANUARY 2023_01-13_WEB
	_Hlk123888254




